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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of TeamLease Digital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TeamLease Digital Private Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial_statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally acceptedin
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with astatement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on May 14, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations cn its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company to orin any other person
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like.on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

NN O

pef Navin Agrawal

Partner

Membership Number: 056102
UDIN: 23056102BGUUOT5402
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 17, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 for “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
on the Financial statements of TeamLease Digital Private Limited.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

®

(i)

@iin

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(a) (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) All Property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company'’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The
quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are
in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any

other parties as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted during the year
Fellow subsidiary company 309

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
Fellow subsidiary company 38

(b) During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the
Company's interest.

5.R. Bathboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity Mo, AABR-4295
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(c) The Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans during the year to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties where the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or
receipts are reqular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety
days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to
the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

(v)  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a significant delay
in provident fund and professional tax in many cases. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed dues in
respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
service tax, professional tax, labour welfare fund, duty of customs, cess and other statutory
dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable, are as follows:

(vii)

Name of the Nature of the | Amount | Period to which Due Date of
Statute Dues (Rs. In the amount Date Payment
lakhs) relates
Employees Provident 16.35* FY 21-22 and Various =
Provident fund act, fund prior years
1952
Employees Provident 14.65 FY 22-23 Various Various
Provident fund act, fund
1952
Professional tax Professional 2554 FY 22-23 Various -
(various State Act) tax

* Amounts as per books of accounts, pending item-wise detailed reconciliation by the Company

and hence not paid till date.
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(viii)

(@ix)

x)

(xi

(b) The dues of income-tax and professional tax that have not been deposited on account of
any dispute, are as follows:

Amoun | Period to which |
Nature of - Forum where the
Name of the statute diras t(Rsin the amount dispute is pending
lakhs) relates
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 14.68 | AY 2014-15 ITAT
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 24.83 | AY 2016-17 Commissioner of
Income tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2.47 | AY 2017-18 Commissioner of
Income tax (Appeals)
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 7.62 | AY 2018-19 Commissioner of
Income tax (Appeals)
Maharashtra State tax Profession 18.22* | FY 2018-19 Professional Tax
on Professional, al Officer
Trades, Tax
Callings and
Employments
Act, 1975

* net of amount paid under protest Rs. 6.08 lakhs

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loan outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer / debt instruments, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a@) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of issue of compulsorily convertible debentures during the year. The funds raised, have
been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause
3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, ageing and

(xx)

(xxi)

expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
accompanied Financial Statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

[\N\O

[!er Navin Agrawal
Partner =3
Membership Number: 056102 |\®

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 17, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of
TeamLease Digital Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TeamLease
Digital Private limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

5.R. Batlinot & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkala-700 016
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detalil, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

A NNO
ReMavin Agrawal
Partner
Membership Number: 056102
UDIN: 23056102BGUUOT5402
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: May 17, 2023




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Balance Shect as a1 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Ks. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right ol nse assets
Goodwill
Other Trtangible assels
Financial assets
(1) Iivestiments
(i1} Loans
(i hers
Ineoame tax assets (ned)
Other nen-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Fmaneal assets
{0 fa) Trade receivables
{1} (b} Unbilled revenue
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
{iit) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(v} Others
{her curment assels
Total current assets
Total assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Oiher equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial lialilines
(i} Borrowings
(1) Lease liabilities
(i Okher Nnaneial Tiadnlities
Net employee defined benedit liabilities
Deferred lax fiabitities {net}
Total nen-current Habilities

Current liahilities
Firancial lizbilines
{1) Borrowings
{103 Lease halmhitics
{11) Trade payables

{a) Total culstanding duoes ol micre enterprises and small enterprises
(b} Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Ly Other financial lisbilites
Met employee defined benefit habilites
Other current Tiabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and Fabilities
Summuary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repuorl of even date

For 5. . BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LILE
ICAL Firmy Regostration Number: 101049%W/E 300004
Chartered Accountants

0

:r Navin Agrawal
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Teamlease Digital Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Alt amounts in Rs. lakhs, unlcss otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benelits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses .

Profit before exceptional items and tax

Exceptional items
Profit before tax
Tax expense:
- Current tax
- Tax adjustment Tor earlier years
Deferred tax
- Deterred tax charge

Income fax expense

Net Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

[tems that will not be reelassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods:

Remeasurement gains/{losses) of defined benefit obligations

Income tax eftect
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Tutat comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Earnings per equity share
Basic {Rs)
Dituted (Rs.)

Summary of signilicant accounting policics

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.

As per owr report ol even date

For SR BATLIBO] & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E 300004
Chartered Accountants

L\M o o 2%,
Q0
er Navin Agrawal
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Partner [11] Bengalury
&
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Place: Bangalore
Date: 17 May 2023
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Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2023

" Ramani Dathi

5034123 4626118
681.70 140.80
51,022.93 46.401.98
42,660.71 3775812
1.692.27 1,392.02
1.236.91 1.315.80
4306.76 4.264.67
49,905.65 44,723.01
1,117.28 1,678.37
- (172,59
1.117.28 1,505,778
150.00 -
11.31 1611
91.64 509.00
252495 325.17
864.33 980.61
7.50 {8.61}
(1.90) 2.17
5.66 {6.49)
569.99 974.17
18.25 20.71
20.55 14.29

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

Alaka Chanda
Director Direcler
IDIN: 08296675 DIN: OR856604

Place: Bangalore
[ate: 17 May 2023



Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Stalement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 23
(AN amounts 1 Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Operating activities

Frofit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net ¢ash flows:
Depreciation and amoriization expense
Firance costs
Liabilities no longer required written back
Interest incoms
Sundry batances writien olf
input credil written Q1T
Rad debts writlen ol
Reversal of provision for expected eredit loss
Fair value adjustments (net}

Working capital adjustments
{Increase)decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)decrease in other lnancial assels
{Increazeydecrease in other assets
(Increase Y doercase in contract assels
Increasef decrease) m trade pavables
Increasef decrease) in other [nancial liabilities
Increasef(decrease) in other current lLiabilitics
Increased decrease) in provisions

Cash generasted from operating aclivities

Income tax relunds

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP)
Purchase of intangible assets

Loans and advances given to related party

Loans and advances repaid by related party

Investments in fxed deposits (net)

Interest received

Net cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities

Financing activities

Debenture application mongy pending allotment
Proceeds from borrowings (nel)

Finanee costs

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabihities
Net cash flows (used in)/ from financing activities

Net (deereasel inerease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the linancial statements.
As per our report of even date.

For S.R, BATLIBOT & ASSOCIATES LLP

ICAT Firm Registration Number: 10]049W/E300004 4
Chartered Accountants

of

per Navin Agrawal
Partner
Membership Number: 05614

Place: Bangatore
Date: 17 May 2023

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.117.28 1.505.78
1,236.91 1.315.80
1.692.27 1,386.02
(7.66) {(18.78)
(607.37) (39.79
44.37 3428
- 4.34
178.41 164.61
(75.63) {(81.23)
(1.60) (3.00)
{1,206.86) (3,344.90)
(24340 727
372,69 (454 00}
(325.34) (993,23}
(236.20) 836.20
(17785 1. 162.54
620.85 34941
201.20 70.24
2.582.08 1,901.56
332 96 42291
2.915.04 2,324.47
(72.74) (32.85)
{0.10} (22.000
(309.06) -
27100 -
(1,564.41) {1,499.49)
602.72 39,79
{1,072.59) (1,514.55)
- 1,320.60
(235.00) {$58.36)
(169227 (1,386.02)
(82.96) (64.40)
(2,010.23) (1,088.78)
(167.78) (278.86)
856.07 1.134.93
15 688.29 B56.07
2

ease Digital Private Limited

Place: Bangalore
Date: 17 May 2023

FFor and on behalf of the Board of Divectors

W‘*&’ &

Alaka Chanda
Direclor
DIN: 08856604



Teamlease Digitid Private Limited
Statement of Changes m Equily for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al wnowds m Rs. kakbs, unless otherwise slaied)

A Lquity share capital:

A, Equiry share capital:
Issued, subscribed and Tully paid share capital

Amapunt
Numbers o Rs. Lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs, T8 eael:
A1 April 2021 47 35,000 473.50
Addinons during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 47,3501 473.50
Adlditions during the year - -
At 31 March 2023 47,3500 473,50
b. Other cquity
Attributable to Total otf it
cquity holders of the Company Hal other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus
Share bas .
Securities hare based Retained -
. payment N Total
premin earnings
reserves
As al B April 2021 1,890,014 - {6,332.9%) {4.442.98)
Net profil for the yeat - - Y8061 80.61
Mel ofher comprehensive income - - {644} (0.44)
Total comprehensive income 1,890,080 - (5.358.81) {3,468.81)
Share based payment expense - 216 - 916
Less: Cross charge paid o | Iolding Company - {29.16) - (29.16)
As at 31 March 2022 1.490.00 - (5,358.81) {3, 468.81)
As at 1 April 2022 1LA90,00 - {5358.8D) {3, 468.81)
Mazb prodil for the year - - Rea 33 6433
Mit olher comprehensive ncome - - 566 5.06
Total comprehensive inceme 132000 - {4 458.80) {1598.52)
Share based payment expense - 34571 - 871
Lass: Cross charge paid w Holdmyg Company - {55710 - (5571
As at 31 March 2023 1.890.00 B (1188.82) (L398.82)
Sumimary of significanl aceounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an inlggeal part of the financaal statements.
As per our report of even date
For §.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Fer aand on behall of the Board of Directors

ICAT Firm Registration Mumber: 10TH49W/300004 -
Chartered Accoumants ’

Teanthease Digital Privade Linnred

g

fni Dathi Alaka Chanda
slor {Mrecior
SNBIOBGTS L3IN- UBRSGO04

o Mavin Aprawal
Partner
Mambership Number: (56102

Blace: Bangon:
Erabe 17 May 2023

Place: Bangabore
Pxate: 17 May 3023




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes (o the standalone fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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3.2

Corporate information
Teaml.case Digital Private Limited {the "Company") was incotporated on July 04, 2016, The Company renders specialised staffing services
mainly to information technology and telecom sector. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Teaml.ease Services Limiled.

The standalone financial statementts are approved by the board of divectors and authorized for issue in accordance with a resoluntion ol the
directors on May 17, 2023.

Basis of preparation

The standalone linancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} specificd
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with the Compantes {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time 1o timed and presentation requirements of Division 1T of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1113, as
applicable o the standalone financial statements.

The standalone Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for certain financial assets and labilities (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instrument) and share-based payments, which are measured at fair value. Mistorical cosl is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services as a1 the date of respective ransactions. Accounting policies are
consistently applied.

The standalone (inancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded 10 nearest lakhs except when otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-curvent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balatce sheet based on currenl! non-corrent classitication.

An assel 18 Weated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected o be realised within twelve months alier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used o setule a ltability for at Jeast twelve months afier the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non current.

A liability is current when;

- It is expected to be settled in normal eperating cycle

- I is held primarity for the purpose of trading

- i 15 due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right 1o defer the scitlement of the liability For al least twelve momhs alter the reporting period.

The Company classilies all other liabilities as noon-current.

Defesred tax assels and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabililies. Advance tax puid is classitied as non-current assels.

The operating cycle is the time between the recopnition of assets and (heir realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has considered
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currency transhation

(i) Functional and presentation corrency

lems included in the linancial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entily operales, i.¢., the "functional currency”. The linancial statements are presented in Indian rupee {INR), which is functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

i) Transactions and balances
Foretgn currency transactions are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rate at the date the transaction
lirst qualifies for recognition.

1) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in lorcign currencies are translated av the funclional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

2} Non-mionctary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a loreign currency, are transluted using the exchange rates
at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency, are translated using the exchange rale at the daic when fair value was determined.

3) Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monctary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise.




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone Imancial statements tor the year ended 31 March 2023

3.3  Revenue recognition

34

Revenue i3 recognised 10 the extent thal il is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the tair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalt of the government. The Company
has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has
pricing latitude and is alse exposed o credil risks.

Revenues i excess of inveicing are classificd as Contract Assets (unbilled revenue). while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
Contract Liability funearned revenue).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

Manpower services

Revenue from manpower services is accounted on acerual basis on performiance of the services agreed as per the contracts with custonzers.

Recruitment and other services
Revenue from recruitment services is recognized on accrual basis on performance of the services agreed as per the contracts with customers.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured al amortised cost, interest income s recorded using the elfective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate
that cxactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected lifie of the tnancial instrument or & shorter period, where apprepriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calcufating the elfective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash [Tows by
considering all the contractuat terms of the {inancial instrument but does not consider the expecied credit fosses. Interest income is included in
finance income in the statement ol profit or loss,

Dividends
Dividend income is recopnised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is peverally when Shareholders/ Board of
[Directors approve the dividend.

Taxes

Fncome tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax charge or credit during the year. Curcent income tax assets and Liabilities are
neasured al the amount expected (o be recovered tron: or paid o the taxation authoritics. The {ax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting dale.

Cutrent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside protit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject lo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deterred ax 15 recognised using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying,
amounts For financial reporting purposes ai the reporting date. Deferred Lax asscts ave recognised for all deductible temporary diflerences, carry
torward of unused tax credits and unused Lax losses only iF it is probable thai Future taxable profis will be available to utilise the same, except;

- When the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises [rom the initial recognition of an assel or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at ihe time of the wansaction, affects neither the accounting prolit nor taxable profit o luss:

- I respect of deductible temporary differences associated witli investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interest in joint venlure deferred tax
assets are recognised only o the extent that it is probable that the wmporary dilferences will reverse m the foreseeable futwre md taxable prolit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrymg amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that it is no longer prehable thal sulficient
taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset w be utilised. Unrecognised delerred tax asscts are re-assessed al cach
reporting date and are recognised o the exient thal it has become probable that Tuture taxable profits will allow the delerred tax asset w be
recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating 1o flems
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Delerred tax assets and deferred tax liabililies are offset it a legally enforceable right exists o set of 7 current 1ax assets against current tax
Liabilities.




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes 1o the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.5

3.4

Leases
The Company assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, ie., if the contraci conveys the right 1o control the use of
an identified asset tor a period of time in exchange lor consideration.

The Company as a Lessee
The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, excepl for shori-torm leases and leases ol Tow-value assets.
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease paynents and right-of-use assels representing the right 10 use the underlying asscts,

i} Right of use Assels

The Company recognises right-of-use asscts a1 the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying assct is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets mcludes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. initial direet costs incurred, and Tease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Righi-ol-use assets are depreciated on 3 straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimaied uselu? tives of the assel. The right-ofuse asscis arc also subject w impairmient, Reler W accoumting policies in
section 3.8 impairment of non-financial assets.

ii} Lease Liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured ai the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease paymends include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amoeunts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the excreise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for tenminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option 10 lerminaic. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are recognised as cxpenses in the
period in which the event or condition that riggers the paymenl oceurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease paynents, the Company uses its imcremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afler (the commencement date, the amount of lease labilitics is increased to refleet
the accrelion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remcasurcd il there is a
medilication, a change in the lease term, 2 change in the lease payments {e.g., changes (o fulure payments resufting from a change in an index or
rale used o determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an oplion W purchase the underlying asset.

iii)} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the shorl-term lease recognition exemption 1 its short-term leases (1. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from (he commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies recognition exemption to leases for which the underlying
assel is of low value, Lease payments on short-terns leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, )

Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated al cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of
replacimg part of the plant and equipment. Al repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

An item of propesty, plant and equipment and any significant part thereof initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no luture
economic benefiis are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the dilference
between the net disposal proceeds and (he carrying amount of the asset) is included in the staiement of prolit and loss when Ihe assel is
derecognised.

The residuat values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each finamcial year end and

adjusted prospectively, il appropriate.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the plant and equipmeni as given under Part C of
Schedule 1 of the Act as Tollows;

Asset Usclul life in Years
Computers 3

Furniture and fixtures 3t I0

Olfice equipment Jws

Electrical equipments {included in office equipment) 3

Vehicles 8

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated usetul life, whichewver is lower,




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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3.8

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recogrition, intangible assets are carried at cost
fess any accumulated amortization and accumulated inspairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indetinite,

lntangible assets with Dmite lives are amortized over the usetul cconomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a (nite useful lile are
veviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected usetul life or the expected patem ol consumption ol future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered (o modity the amortization period or method. as appropriate, and are treated as changes n
aceounting estimates. The amortization cxpense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset,

Internally generated intangibies, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the relaied expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognilion of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between (he net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounl of the asset and wre recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

Amortization methods, estimated usetul lives
Amortization is caleulated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the Intangibles as follows:

Intangible assets Liseful life in Years Internally generated or acquirved
Computer soflware 3-5 years Acguired
Other Intangible Assets 3-5 years Acgired
Goodwill on merger 10 years Acquired

The National Company Law Tribunal {"NCLT") of Mumbai and Chennai bench, vide their order dated 16 November 2017 and 30 November
2017 respectively, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme™ off ASAP Info Systems Privaie Limited {("ASAP™ and Nichepro
Technologies Private Limited {"Nichepro™) with the Company persuant to section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) and other
relevant provision ol (the Acl, with appointed date being | January 2017, The accounting of merger including recognition and amortization of
goodwill is done under the "Purchase” method as prescribed in the Accounting Standard 14 — “Accounting for Amalpamation™. The Company
has been amortizing goodwill on merger over a period of 10 years [rom the appointed date in accordance with the Scheme.

Goodwill generated om ol acquisition ol business is not amortized but tested for Impairment.

Impairment of non-financial asscts

The Company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that any property. plant & equipment, right of vse assets and
intangible assets may be impaired. 11 any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing lor an asset is required, ihe Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher ol an asscl’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGLY) fair value less costs ol
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined tor an individual assel, unless tie assel does not generale cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an assel or CGL exceeds its recoverable amount,
the assel is considered impaired and is writicn down 1o i3 recoverable anount.

In assessing value in use, the estimalted fulure cash iTows are discounted W their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic to the assel.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suflered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o a linancial asset of one entily and a financiad liability or equity instrument of another
enlity.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Finaneial assets and financial liabilities ave recognised when (he Company becomes 2 party o the contract embodying the related {inancial
instroments. All financial assets, financial liabilitics and fnancial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such
values are difleremt from the fair value, at tair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and [nancial liabilities (other than financial assets and {inancial Habilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added o or deducled from the
fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly atiributable o the acquisition of
linancial assets and financial ligbilities at fair value through prolit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairmeni, Investment in preference shares/ debentures of the
subsidiaries are trented as equity instruments il the same are convertible inlo equily shares. Investment in preference shares/ debentures not
meeting the aforesaid conditions are classificd as debt instruments al amortised cosl.

LEffective interest method

The effective interest method (EIR) is a method of calenlating the amortised cost of a Enancial imstroment and of allocating interest imeome o
expense over the relevant period. The effeclive interest tate i3 the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
cxpected life of the linancial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised  cost through effective interest method il these linancial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is we hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash Qows and the contractual terms of the Hnancial asset give rise on
specitied dates 1o cash lows that are solely payments of principul and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC1)

Finangial assets are measured at Fair value Uwough other comprehensive income it these financial assets are held within a business whose
ohjective is achieved by both collecting contracwual cash [lows and selling financial assets and the contractual erms of the financial agset give
rise on specified dates Lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount onstanding.

Financial assets at Fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

[inancial assets are measured at fair value through profil or loss unless it is measured au amorudsed cost or @ faic value through other
comprehensive income on inttial recognition. The transactien costs directly atiributable (o the acquisition of tinancial assets at fair value through
prolitor foss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expeeled credit toss (ECLY mode! for measurement and recopnition of impairment loss on
linancial assets. The Company follows “simplified approach™ for recognition of provision for ECL. on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does nol require the Company tir track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes provision for [ECL. based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Provision for LCL is recopnised for financial assets measured al amortised cost and fair
value through prefit or loss,

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments a1 air value, Where the Company elected 1o present fair value gaing and losses on
equity investmenis in other compichensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of [ir value gains and Josses 10 profit or loss,
Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other inceme when the Company's right 1o receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of linancial assets a1 fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gainf(Josses) in the statenment of profit and
toss. Impairment losses (and reversal ol impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCL are not reported separately lrom other
changes in fair value,

Derecognition of financial assets

A tinancial asset is derecognised only when the rights w receive cash lows [rom the asset have expired or the Company has transierred the rights
lo receive cash Nows from the financial asset or retaims the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assel, bul assumes a
contractual obligation o pay the casl llows to one or more recipients.

Where the entily has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of vwnership of the
linancial assel. In such cases. the financial assel is derccognised. Where the etity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the tinancial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership ol the financial asset. the
linancial assel is derecognised il the Company has not retained control of the financial assel. Where the Company retains controt of the |l|ldlll2,l‘ll
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing, involvement in the fingmcial asset,
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(ii) Financial Liahilities

Financial lisbilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are initially measuced at fair value, nei of transaction cosis, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost through ¢ffective
imerest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due 1o the short term maturity of these instruments.

Finanecial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilitics at {air valuc threugh prefit or loss include Iinancial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilitics designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through prolit or loss.

Finansial liabilities designated upon inttial recognition af fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only
if the eriteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designuted as FVTPL, fair value pains/losses attributable (o changes in own credit risk are
recognised in (C1. These gainsfloss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in Fair value of such liability are recopnised in the statement ol profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing {inancial
hability is replaced by another lrom the same lender on substantially different s, or the terms of an existing Liability are substantially
maditied, such an exchange or modilication is treated as the derecognition ol the original liability and the recognition ol a new liubility. The
difference in the respective carrying ameunts is recognised in the statement of profit or Joss.

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are ofTset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if theve is enforceable legal right te offset the
recogised amounts and there is an inention 1o settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuliancously.

{iv) I'air value of financiaf instroments
In determining the Tair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hicrarchy and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risks existing at ¢ach reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:
Alb assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the Fair value hicrarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the jvwest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the Fair value measurement is unohservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether wansfers have
aceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing cateporization (based on (he lowest levet input that is significant (o the fair value
measurement as & whole} at the end of each reporting, period.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cosis that the Company incurs in conneclion with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly auributable o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes @ substantial period of time 10
get ready lor s intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged 1o statement
ol profit and loss.

Cash amd cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash a1 banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or tess, which are subject to an instgnificant risk o changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in ihe statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, short-term deposits with original
maturitics ol three months or less that are readily convertible 1w known amounts of cash and which are subject (0 an insignilicant risk of changes
in value, net ol bank overdrafls.
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Employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity obligations

Gratuwity, which is a defined benefit plan, s acerued based on an independent actuarial valuation, done on projeeted unit credit method as at the
balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation ot a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability,

Remeasurement gams and losses arising From experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they aceur in other comprehensive income and is ransferred Lo retained camings in the statenment of changes in equity in the balance sheet, Such
accumulated re-measurements are not reclassified tw the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs arg recognised in prolit or loss on the earlier of :
a) The date of the plap amendmieat or cuctailment. aod
b} The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate (o the net delined benefit liability or asset. The Company recopgnises the following changes
in the net delined benelit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

-~ Service costs cComprising current seevice cosls, past-service costs. gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlenents: and

- Netl inlerest expense of inceme.

Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled 1o be  compensated [or unavailed leave as per the policy of the Company, the liability in respect of
which is provided, based on an actoarial valuation (using the projecied unit credit methed) at (he end of each year. Accumulated compensated
absences, which are expectled to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short ierm employee benefits and
ithose expected Lo be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. Actuarial
gains/ losses arc recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss in (he year in which they arise.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution (0 Government Provident Fund

In respect of certain employees, the Company pays provideni tund contributions fo publicly adminisicred provident funds as per applicable
regulations. The Company has ne further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Share-based payments

Ermployees of the Company receive remuneralion in the form of steck appreciation rights plan of the Holdmg Company (equily seitied
instruments) lor rendering services over a defined vesting period, Equity insteuments granted are measured by reference 1o (he fair vaue ol the
instrument a1 the date of grant. The expense is recognised in the siatement of profit and loss with 3 corresponding increase in equity over the
period that the employees unconditionally becomes entitled to the award. Cross charge from Holding Company towards stock appreciation rights
for the employees of the Company are adjusied against the Share Based Payment reserves as per the terms of the agreement entered into hy the
Company with the Holding Company in this regard. The equity instrumenlts generally vest in 2 graded manner over the vesting, period ¢ the
period over which all the specified vesting conditions are Lo be satisfied. The tair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting
period of the respeciive tranches of such grants (accelerated amortization). At 1he end of cach period. (he entity revises its estimates of the number
of options thal are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision te original
estimates, 10 any, i the stalement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment W equity. The stock option compensation expense is
determined based on the Company's estimate of equily instruments that will eventually vest.

Provisions and contingent liability

Provision

Provisions arc recognised when the Company has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required Lo seltle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision (o be reimbursed. the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assel. but
only when the reimbuorsement is virtally cerlain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of prolit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

Il the elfect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate. the risks
specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due (o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cosi.

Cuontingent liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation (hal arises [vom past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-ocourrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company, or a present obligation thal ariscs from past evenis where it is noi
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in exlmm.ly rare cascs where there is a liability that cannet be measuwred ra.,hably lhu (ompanv does not
recogniz ingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. i
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Cash dividend distribution to equity holders

The Company recognizes a liability 1o make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorized and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shazes are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the
sharehotders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by (he Company's Board of Directors.

Earnings Per Share (EP'S)

Basic EPS is cafeulated by dividing the profitfloss tor the year auributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by (he weighled average
aumber of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to cquity sharcholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number ol equily shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equily shares.

Operating segment

The Board of Directors have been identified as the Chiel Operating Decision Maker {CODM) as defined by INID-AS 108, Operating Segment.
CODM evaluates the performance of the Company and allocated resources based on the analysis of various petformance indicators of the
Company. The Company's business activities [alls within a single business segment and operates primarily i India and (here is no other
significant geographical segment and hence segment reporting is nol applicable.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management 1o make judgements, estimaics and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Uincertainty abowt these assumptions and estimates could resull in outcomes that reguire a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities aliected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceraing the fiture and other key sources ol estimatien uncertainty al the reporting, date, that bave a significant risk of’
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilitics within the next financial year, are deseribed below, The Company
based its assumpfions and estimales on parameters available when ithe financial stazements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumplions about loture developments, however, may change due 1o market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected/ updated in the assumptions when they eventually occur.

Defined benelit plans

The cost of the defined benelit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation mvolves making various assumptions that may difter from actual developments in the future. These include the
deteemination of the discount rate, Tuture salary increases and mortality rates. Due to complexitics involved in the valuation and its long term
nature. a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive w changes in (hese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject 1o change is the discount rale. n determining the appropriate discount rale lor plans operaled in india, the
management considers the inlerest rate of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond o expecied erm el delined
benelit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table in India. The mortality tables tend to change oaly at interval in
response to demographic changes. Fulure salary inercases and gratuity increases are based on expected Tuture inflation rates,

Taxes

Delerred tax assets are recognised on deductible wemporary differences to the extent that it is probable tha taxable prolit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be wilised. Significant management judgement is required (o determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely tming and the level of fnture 1axable prolits wogether with luture tax planning sirategies.

Impairment of non-current assets

Determining whether long-term investoents and loans are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the individual investments in
subsidiaries, associale and jomt venfure or the relevant cash generating units. The value in use caleulation is based on Discounted Cash Flow
CDCE) model. Further, the cash {low projections are based on estimates and assumplions relating to operational performance, growth rate.
operating marging of the CGL. ete.

Other estimates

The preparation of tinancial statements involves cstimates and assumptions that affoet the reported amount of assets. liabilitics, disclosure off
contingenl liabilities at the date of financial statemenis and the reported amount of revenues and expenses For the reporting period. Specifically,
the Company estimates the probability ol collection of accounis receivable by analysing historical payment palterns, customer concentrations and
current economic trends. I the financial condition of a customer deteriorates or there i an overall deterioration in the credit risk macro
environment, additional altowances may be requived in Tulure, '
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3.18 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 w
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023,

(i) Defnition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments o Ind AS 8

The amendments clarily the distinetion between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors.
It has also been clavilied how entities use measurement ehniques and inputs Lo develop accounting estinates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or aller April 01, 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimales that oceur on or alter the start of that period.

O1) Disclosure of Aceounting Pelicies - Amendments Lo Ind AS |

The amendments aim (o help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more uselul by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their “signilicant” accounting policies with a requirement (o disclose their ‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how
enlities apply the concept of materiality in muking decisions abon accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments are effective tor annual reporting periods beginming on or after April 01, 2023 and apply 1o changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimaies that occur on or afler the start of that period.

The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or alier April 01, 2023, Consequential amendments have been made
in Ind AS 107,

(iii} Deterred Tax related to Asscts and Liabilities arising lrom a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of (he initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, s0 that it no longer applics 1o transactions (hat give rise
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,

The amendments should be applicd w transactions (that vecur on or atler the beginning of the earlicsi comparative peviod presented. Tn addition, at
the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset {provided that sufticient taxable profit is avaifable) and a deferred
tax lLiability should also be recognised for all deductible and axable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning
obligations. Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101,

The Company is currently asscssing the impact of the aloresaid amendments. The amendmenis w Ind AS 12 arc applicable lor annual periods
beginnmeg, on and alter April 01, 2023,
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Nate 4: Properey, plant and cquipment

(?fﬁcc Computers Furniture & ¥ehicles Phant & Toral
cquipment fixtures Machinery

Gross Dlock
As at 1 April 2421 122 81 366 15 151.79 1380 415.77 1.070.32
Add: Additions - 0.37 211 - - 1090 3208
Less: Dusposals (9.75) (32.40) {74.H)) - - (141,05}
As at 31 March 2022 11343 33546 7289 12 RO 426,67 962.25
Add: Additiens (190 7383 - . 164 - 73.37
Tess Thsposals 4.11) (16057 - - {297.87) 1462.55)
As ar 31 March 2023 1022 248.72 7289 13.30 L3244 57507
Accwmulated depreciation

As b T April 2021 7572 23801 7420 &8.72 5013 Tol 78
Cliarge duiing the year 14.07 50.03 4961 1.64 24.42 139.77
Disposals (9.73) 152 44} {78.90) - - {141.03)
AS at 31 March 2022 8004 233564 4491 118,36 38Y 55 T60 50
Charge during the year 10 34 5887 20.07 1.64 4076 131.64
Dizpusals (4.1 {160.57) - - (297 87) (462 .55)
As at 31 March 2023 56.23 133.4 64,98 11.00 132,44 429,59
Ner bock

As at 31 March 2022 3339 9952 27.98 344 3712 20 7S
As at 31 March 2023 2399 114,78 7.0 1.80 - 148.48
Note 5: Right of Lse Assets

Buildings

Gross Mock

As at | April 2021 12717

Additions 44 34

Pisposals -
As at 31 March 2022 321.56

Adelitions 55981

Disposals {321.55)
As at 31 March 2023 551.82
Aceumnlated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021 167.95

Chavge during the year 58.20

Dispersals -

As ar 31 March 2022 126,15

Cliarge dwring the year 94,96

Disposals {24801

As at 31 March 2023 1310

Net black

As at 31 Mareh 2422 usql1

As at 31 Mareh 2023 486,72

Note 6: Goodwill and Other Intangible assets
Gross Block ('m,'mm'fr Brand Now M OMPEIE whewres Websire Total Goodwill

relationships rights

As at 1 April 2021 1.514 33 5026 743124 108.12 - 271615 7557
Addinons - - - - 42.4) 42.00 -
Ihsposals - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 1.814.33 5026 45,24 10812 42.00 275813 TIWET
Addilions - - - a1 - .10 -
Isposals - - - {53.18) - {33.18) -
As at 31 March 2023 1.814,53 .24 743.24 55.04 42.00 2, 705.07 751057
Acomnulated amartisation
As ai 1 April 2021 .248.52 5120 J48.65 B4.09 - 183212 L7627
Charge during the year 25386 - G820 16,47 1.8 A70.47 74735
IMsposals - - - - - - -
As at 31 ¥March 2022 130238 50.26 54683 101,16 1.94 2.202.59 392362
Charge during the year 156,08 - 9820 1.36 | 26295 T17.36
Duspersals - - - (53,18} - {5318} -
As ar 31 March 2023 1,658.46 50.26 645.05 49.34 .25 1,412.36 4,670,9%
Net block

As ut 31 March 2022 312.15 - 196,39 6.9 4106 533.5G 364695
As at 31 March 2023 156,07 - 98.19 5.70 .75 22,71 2,899.59
Netes:

1. During the year ended 21 March 2017, goodwill of Rs. 747357 fakhs was recognised by the Company an amalgamation of ASAPR Tnlb Systeins Private Limited (*ASAP" Y and
Nichepro Technologies Privite Lisited {"Nichepro®} with the Company as per Lhe approved scheme of amalgamation by NCLT. The Company has been amortizing goodwill on
merger over a period of W yaars o the appoinied daie in accordance with the Scheme. For details vefor note 3.7

2, During the year ended 31 March 2020, poodwill of Rs. 97 fakhs was recognised by the Company on acquisition of TT Stalling vertical of £ Cenirie Solutions Privaie Limited
("eComric™), a company incorporated under Companies Acl, 1956, The goodwill bas been tested lor impairment anmeally under specialised staffing }i..‘(}L,'.
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Mote 7: Investments

Investments
Mo curreni, Unguoted (at cost)

(A) Investment in Equity Shares

Subsidiary

Kevstone Busingss Solulions Provate Limied {K135)

42,627 (3] March 2022 42.627) equity shares of Rs, 10 each, fully
paid

Apmrerale value of wirgqueted investiments
Apgregate amount of provision Tor dimination

Moke 8: Loaws

Mon-current

(Unsecured, Congidered gouwd)

foans Lo reladed parties (Refer Note 37)

Note 9 Other financial asseds
Non-current

tUnsecured, Considered pood)
Teimbursement right for pratuity
Secwily depositsfother deposils
inher assels (Reler Noke 37)

Current

{Unsecured, Considered goud)
Reimbirsernenl sight for gratuity
Securily deposits

Intercst acerued on fixed deposis

Note 10; Deferved tax Liabilities (net)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

B20LIN) 826,60
52000 520.00
820,60 32000

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

38.06

38.06

31 March 2023

31 Mavch 2022

13310 -
T8 ) 108
44,30 .

160,40 50.68

144 -
3995 2305
16,596 6.31
5240 29.46

31 March 2023

31 Mavch 222

Dederred tax (habihitiesYassets (382,31 {288.77)
(382,31 {258.77)
b o Provision Unahsorled
Provisien fDIi Depreciation on leave business losses / .
As at expected credit pmpert)_(, plant encashment unabsorbed Others Total
luss and eyuipment o L
andl gratwity depreciation
1 April 2021 6217 {932.00) 49 [0 93195 107 56 21812
Credit! charge:
Prolit and loss {213 200 48 17.68 (643.42) (HE29) {300,063
Otbrer comprehensive meome - - 217 - - 217
31 March 2022 40.66 {746.18) 63,95 308,53 39,27 {2158.70)
Credit! charge:
Prolit and loss {1904y 2392 064 (3I0E5H (28.03) {21643
Oller comprehensive income - - 150 - - {190
31 March 2023 21.62 (532.20} 117,69 - 104 (231

Reconciliation of deferved tax (net)
Chpenmg balance

T eredit/ {expensed durmg the year recognized m statement of prodic and loss

Tax expense during the year recopmised in OC]
Closing balance

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(288.77) 21802
(91.0d) (509,00}

(1.9 217
{382.31} [188.77)
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Note 1L Income tax asset (ner)

Advance income fax (net of provision For faxation)

Income tax expense in thee statement of profit and less consists of:

Profit or loss section

Curvend income lax charge

Tax adjustment for eaclior years

Daefermed fax clarge {net)

Income rax elirge reported in e statement of profit or loss

Income tax recognised in other compreliensive income

Delamed s charged/{oredity
Income s expense clarged{eredited) e OC1

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

[rofit before exceptional lems and tax

Tax nsing the Company's domesic tax vate @ 25 164%
Tax effect of:

Non-deductible tax expense

Tax adjushments of earlier years

Brought forward losses

Income tax expense

MNote 12: Other nos-carrent assets

tUnseeured., Considered powd)

Capital advance

Balanees with statotory/government authorities*
*Maic under protest wowards professional 1ax

Note E3: Teade receivables

{Unsecured, Considered gowd)

Trady receivables Tromt related parties (RBeleor Mote 373

Trade receivables - others

(Unsecured, creli impaired)
Trade receivables- ollers

Adlowvances B exprected coedil loss

31 Mavch 2023

31 March 2022

2.160.31

2,060.58

1,166.31

2,660.58

31 Maveh 2023

31 March 2022

FSU.L0 -
.31 .11
9] .64 509,00

152,95 525,17

31 Mavch 2023

31 Mavch 2022

.90

217

LN

17

31 Mar 2023

31 March 2022

LIT 2R 1678 37
281,20 42341
348 .88 661.67

1121 1601

(388.44) (51502

25195 525,17

31 March 2423

31 March 2022

O U8

50,00

6.08

50.00

3t March 2013

31 March 2022

vt 6d 493,45
8,203.97 1.298.08
85.94 161.57
8,981,535 795510
(85.9d) (161.57)
8,595,061 7. 79L53
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Trade veceivall ing schedul

Laddl ]

As at 31 March 2023

Carvent but Outstanding for following periods feem due date of Payment

not due .
Futal
Less than ¢ 6 ¥onths- , More than 3
1-2 Years 2-3 years
Monils I Year i years
Undispried Trade vecervables - considered pood F2I281 1,622 80 - - - - &.895.01
Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - 52.49 24.45 5.24 3.76 83594
Total 7,272.81 1,622.80 5249 2445 52 3. 76 8,08 L85
As at 31 March 2022
Current but Outstanding Fer following perieds Trom due date of Payment
not e Total
Lass tham & 6 Months- 1-2 Years 2.3 yours More than 3
Months 1 Vear ¥ yeirs
Undispuded Trade seecivables - considered pood 6,584, 18 1183 .56 2379 - - - 7.741.53
Lhisdisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - 7225 05,24 24,08 16].57
Total 6,584, 18 1,183.50 23.79 7225 65,24 24.08 7,953.10

a) No reeeivable i due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or joinlly wilh any other person. For tade or other receivable due from fimis or private
companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a diveetor or a mamber, refer note 37,

b) Trade receivables are non-mterest bearing and willn erecdit peried upte 120 days.

e} Fhere are no dispuled trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 31 Moreh 2022,

Note 14: Unbifled revenue

Cuwrvent 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(Uasecured, Considerad pood)

Unbilled revenne 4592 5% 4 267.21
4,592.35 4,267,21

Mote 15 Casloand cash equivalenis and bank balances

31 Barch 2023 3t March 2022

Balanees with banks

- On current ascounts 688.29 §56.07
H88.29 #56.07

Other bank balances
Deposits with remaining matirity of fess tan 12 months d 6T v | 603 57
3.167.98 1,603.57
3.856.27 2,459.64

For the purpose of the statement of cash Mows, cash and cash copdvalents comgrise the following:

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

Balances with banks
- U currend acooums 68829 856,07
648.29 BS6,167

*Fixed deposits of Rs 96.25 lakbs as at 31 March 2023 (March 31, 2022 Ra. 10038 Lakhs) is under Jisn with HDEC Bank for the loans laka guarantes issued to third parties,

Note 16; Other corrent assets

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

{Unsecured, Consideted gool)

Prepand expenses . 307.04 46590
Adhvanees o suppliers/iolhers 1204 26046
Lo and advances b employees 14.72 3140
Advances to related parties (reler nole 37) 10537 201 48
589.22 267,90
{Credd impanged)
Oiher ailvanes M 2726
Lesa: Provision (27.20) (27263

580,22 67, H)




Teawlexse Digital Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Ry, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17: Equity share capital

Equity share capital

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022

{i} Anthorised equity share capital

22673680 (31 March 2022: 226736801 equily shares of Rs. 10 each. 2,267 37 226737
(ii} Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

4735000 (31 March 2022 4735 0003 equity shares of Rs. 1 each 473.50 473 50
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares 473,50 473.50

{iii} Ferms/ vights attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per share held. Tn the evend of
liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible t reecive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential ameuwnits, in proportion w their
shareholding, The dividend proposed by the Board of Direetors is subject W the approval of the sharchoiders in the ensumg Annual eneral Meeting,

{iv) Details of sharcholders holting more tham 5%, shares in the Company:

Mame of the sharcholders

Equity sharcs of Bs. 10 ¢ach Tully paid
Teamlease Services Linyted

{¥) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2023

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Numbers

P
{0

N by k-

%o hotding

4735000

100%%

47 35000

O

No. of shares at

Mo, of shares al

o " H o, T, a, i
the beginning of Change during the end of the A ‘uf Total Yo change during
the vear the year year Shares the year
"FeamLease Services Limited 47,35 000 - 47.35,000 110 -
Ax at 31 March 2022
No- of "fha '.“’3 at Change during No. of shares at % of Total % change during
the bepinning of ) tive end of the .
the year the year veur Shares the year
Teaml.ease Services Limited _4?.35.000 - 4735000 1005 -

Mot 18: Other equity

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Securilhes premiim 1, 890,00 ER90.00

Retained earnings (4,488 82) (5.3588h)

Share based payment reserves Z -
(2,598.82) (3468.80)

Nature amd purpose of ather reserves
(i} Securities preminm reserve

Securities premium teserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is 1o be utifised in accordance with the provisions ol Section 52 of

Companies Act, 2113

(i) Share based payment reserves

This reserve relates (o stock appreciation rights granted by the holding company 1 the employees of he Company ander Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Plan

2019 respectively.
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Motes io financisl statements fior the year ended 31 March 2023
(AL amowunts in B Yakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nete 19: Borrvwings

Mon-Current
Lnsecwred

Seres Ao Serhes M
1B (31 March 2022 1 8405 Compulsonly Convertible Debentures (CCERS) of
R 14 lakhs each from Pacent Conpany

Sermes N

P32 {31 March 2022 Mily Compalsorily Converiible Debentures (CCD's} ol Rs. 16
liakhs cach from Parem Company

Debenture appfication swoney weetved towavds allotment of CCDs §Refer Note 2 below)

Note:

Effective Maturity 31 March 2023

intevest rate

31 Marveh 2022

Reler Note

1. The CULYs gre converlible into equity shares on o Delone W years Tom the date of alkdment, at the Gz value as ol conversion dle

20015 have Desenn fssued o 08 Apnl 2022 against the application money towards the allotmenl of CCD.

Current
Unsecuied
Laan liom telated pany (Refer Note 37)

Note 20: Lease liabilivies

Non-C'nrrent
Lease liabiliies

Curren
Lz alntinics

The following is the movement in lease labilities
Particulars

Balances as af beginmng, of the year

Add: Additions during the year

Less: Deletions durmyg the year

Add: Franee cost meinred dinig i yoor

Less. Payments {including finance cost)

Balance as at year emd

8.37% 1 8.400.00 18,400 (H)
Ll

8.37% Refer Note 132000 .
behow :

1472000 1840000

- 1,320 ()

19, 720.00 19,720.60

1.25% O Demand - 235.00

- 23500

31 March 2023

3F March 2022

A8 32

51.07

335.32

5107

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

152.33

5018

152,33

50.18

31 Mareh 2023

3t March 2022

101.25 71.25
540.02 9439
(7H.60) -

20.55 0.80
(103.51) (71.25)
487,65 100.25

The wetphted average discound rate used for recopnition of lease liabilitics is 7.20% pa. (31 March 2022 9% pal)

Nete 21: Employee defined benefit liabifitices

Neon-current
FEmployee benelits - Grauity (Refer note 323
Employee bewefils - Compensated absences

Current
Employew benelits - Gratuity (Refer nowe 32)
Employee benelils - Compensated absenees

Note 22: Trade payables

Cwurrent

Terial outstandingg dues of micre enterposes and smalb enterprises CMSMLE"Y (Refor Mode 403
Terbal oudstanding ducs of ceeditors oilicr than micre enterprises and smalk enlerpnises

Refer note 37 Fur dutails of traude payables w related parties.

31 March 2023

3 March 2022

28192 11%.83
8§.59 03 50
JTi51 184.39
4327 34 47
53.381 5.0
97.08 §9.506

31 March 2023

31 Miereh 2022

12.68 81.37
1,216 46 1.383.17
1,229,14 1,465.34




Trade payables ageing schedwle

As at 31 March 2023

Ourstanding for fellowing periods From due date of payment

Unbyilled Cnrrent but Less than 1

More than 3

dues ot due year 1-I years 1-3 years vears Tofal
{1y MSMIE 1.47 0.01 5.0 551 - - 12.68
(i) Unhers 94478 167.63 90,74 378 363 1.58 1,216.46
951,25 167.64 96.43 9.29 2,65 1.38 L2314
As at 31 March 2022
G Ting tor fellowing perisds from duc date of payment
Unbilted Current but Less than 1 Maore than 3 .
A 1-2 yers 2-3 years Totay
dhes not due yeil yeirs
{1y MSMIE - 1516 6638 o3 - - 81.57
{10y Others YRS 44 41.248 273.12 5062 18.43 11.88 138377
058,44 56.44 339.50 S.65 18,43 11.8% 1,465.34

Naotes:
ad Trade: payables are non-inlerest beanmg and ace sormaily sewtled on 8o 30 day lenns,
DY There are no disputed trade payables.

Mg 23: Other Gancial liabilitics
Non - Current

Payable o related pacty {Refer Note 37}
Long-term incentives payable

Current

Employees benelins payable

Security deposils

Payabrle by related party (Refer Moe 37)

Note 24: Other current liabilities

GS5T payable

Other statwory dues payable
Advance lrom customers
Other cunvent liabrlites

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

97.37 -
204 46 -
L TH -

284507 3002

7783 167608

- RENIH
2,923.59 341077

3t Maveh 2023

31 March 2022

1,000,306 54873
622.65 543.05
7248 512
22,26 .
L1775 1.096.90




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes 1o [nancial statements tor (he year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 25: Revenae lom operations

Sale of services

Other disclosures

Contract bakances

Contract asseis - Trade receivables

Conttagt assets - Unbilled revenue

Contract habilitics - Advance from customers

Setout below is the amount of Revenue recognised from.

Amounts included in contract babifities at the beginning of the year

Mode 26: Other income

Interest income on.
Loans W relaked parties (Reler Note 37)
Lreposits with banks
Tneome tax relunds
Others
Liablities no longer required written back
Foreign exchange gain {net}
Other income

Note 27: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and boms

Gratuity expense (Refer note 323

Compensated absences

Comtribubion to provident [und and other lunds

Stafl welfare expenses

Share based payment expenses (nety (Reler Note 42)
Totat employee benefit expense

MNote 28: Finance Cost

Interest on bank overdrail

Interest on Joan from related party/CCDs { Refir Note 37)
Tnterest on lease lialnhites

Interest on Ningngial liabdioes and others

Note 29: Depreciation and amovtisalion expense

Depreciation ol property, plant & squipment
Depreciation on righl of use assels
Amorlization of other intangilile assets
Amortization of goodwll

Note 30: Other expenses

Rent

Rales & laxes

Llectneny

Traveling and conveyance

Repairs and inaintenance - others

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges

Auditors’ remuneration {Refer nobe below)
Insurance

Sundry balances weitten off

Bad debis written ol¥

Reversal of provision for expected credit loss
Miscellancous expenses

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

5034123 46.261.18
50,341.23 46,261.18

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

§.895.61
4,392.55
7248

7.791.53
42672
12

31 March 2023

31 March 202

sa2

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

| 64 -
7514 R A
530.55 76.03
1.60 30My
766 1% 78
270 1.72
3236 1.48
681.70 130,80

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

40,451 85 35828 81
6135 6191

60 36 64.34
17106 1,528 63
32683 23825
58.7) 2916
42.669.71 37,751.12

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

031 @472
164686 1.366.65
20.55 6.86
24.55 8.79
1,692.27 1,392.02

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

131.64 139.77
94 06 58.20
262.95 370.47
747.36 747.36
1,236.91 1,315.50

31 Marvch 2023

3 Mareh 2022

422492 EXHAY:)
358y 16 59
953 11.22
139258 35807
51.93 33.08
378 1.54
RREERT 289307
3180 2206
972 3t

44 37 3428
178.41 Iod.i]
(75.63) (8125
124 7% 40211
4,306,76 4,264.67




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Noles to financial statemends for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amotnts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stawed)

Note: Payment to auditors
As auditor
Staiutory audit fee
Tax audin fee
Certification fee
Reimbursement ol expenscs

Note 31: Earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Basic

Proficatiributable 1o equity shareholders (Rs m lakhs)

Noeminal vabue of each equity share (Rs))

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

iP5 - basic (Rs )

Dilutive

Profil attributalbie o equity shareholders (Rs. in lakhs)

Add: interest on CCI»

Less: Tax eflect on Inlerest on CCD

Predil auributable to equity sharcholders adjusted for the effect of dilution {Rs. in lakhs)

Weighted average number of squity shares outstanding during the year
Eect of dilution ol CCE}

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effect of difution

EPS - diluted (Rs.}

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

28 80 13,20
3.00 1.88
- 694

- 0.04
31.80 22.06

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

864 33 YBiLo}
143.00 10.00
47,3500 47.35.000

18.25 2071

864,33 980.61
1.646.02 1,328.49
(414.27} (334 35)
2,096.08 1,974.75
4735000 4735000
54.65.480 90,80,026
1,402,00,480 1,38,15,026
20.55 14.29

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the conversion of CCDs would have an antidilutive etfect on earmings per share and hence ignored for the purpose of
calculation of diluted EPS. The number of equity shares to be issued upon the conversion of CCDs iy determined based on the fair valuation of the company under

CF method.




Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Motes Lo (inancial slatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rs. takhs, unless otherwise skated)

Note 32; Employee benefil oblipation

A, Gratnity (Associates)
The Company has recopnised graiuity Hability and reimburseiment right in tespect of associate employees in accordance with Ind AS 19

The following table summarise the components of net benelit cxpense recognised in he statement of profit and toss and the funded status
and amounts recognised in the batance sheet for the pratuity plan:

Net defined benefig liability/ (assets)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation 134 59 -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net linbility 134,59

3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current 1.40 _
Mon-current 13310 -

Net benefit cost ( Refer note below)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current service cost 13450 -
Net benefit expense 134,59 -

Notw: The above employee benelits expense towards gratuity and refated reimbursement right For associate employees is netted ofi'in the
Staternent of Profitand 1oss

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation vepresenting reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as
follows:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year - -
Current service cost 134.59 -
Defined benclit ohligation at ead of the year 134.59 -

The principal assumptions nsed in determining gratnity benefit obligation are shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.11% -
Salary escalalion rate 5.00% -
Adtridon rale 36% -
Retirement age on -
Mortality lables Indian Assured -

Lives Mortality
(2012-14 U
Table
Naote:
1} The estimates of [uture salary increase, constdered in actuarial valuation, takes int account inflation, seniority, prometion and other
refevant factors such as supply and demand factors in employment market.

Sensitivity analysis

A quanbitative sensitivily analysis lor significant assumplions on delined bencfit obligation are as shown helow.

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Particubirs % Increase 1% Deerease 1% In¢rease 1% Decrease
Iscount rate 130.37 139.05 - -
Salary escalation rawe 138.44 1387 -
Allrition rote 132.05 137.15 -

The following payments are expected coniribalions to the defined henefit plan in future years
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Yoear | 44 37 M
Year 2 3338 -
Year 3 pEwL -
Year 4 2145 -
Year 5 13 64 -
Mext 5 years 23.90 -

P
The weighled average duration of defined benelit ebligation at the end of the reporting period is 4 years (31 March 2022 Nily.
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Notes to fimancial stajements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Ry, lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

B. Gratuity (Core employees)

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The grawity plan is geverned by the Payment of Gratuily Act.
1972, Under the Act, every employee who has completed 5 years of service are eligible for gratuity on departure at 15 days salary
{last drawn) tior guch completed year of service. The tevel ol benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and sulary
at relirement.

The lollowing table summarise ihe components ol net benelit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuily plan;

Net defined benefit liability/ (assets)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value ol funded obligation 194,36 157.06
Fair value of plan assels 3.76 3.76
Net liability 190.60 153.36

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current 41.78 3447
Non-current 148.82 118.83

Net benefit cost recognised in statement of profic and loss

31 March 2623 3 March 2922

Current service cosl 53.88 58.01
Lnterest cost on delined benefit obligation 7.66 4.16
Interest income on plan asset {4149} {0.26)
Net benefit expense 61.35 61.91

Remeasurement loss/{(gains) in oiher comprehensive income 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Due 10 change in demographic assumptions 21.98 {27.10)
Due 1o change in finuncial assumptions 540 1.940)
Drue to change in experience adjustments {35.14) 33.87
Return on plan assets 0.2 0.02
Actuarial loss/{gain) recognised in QC1 (7.56) 8.63

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof
are as Tollows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined benefit obligaiion al beginning of the year 15700 109.58
Currend service cost 53.88 58.01
Past service cost . -
[nterest cost on delined benefit abligation 7.66 4.16
Benefits paid (16.48) {23.30
Re-measurements

Actuarial {gain) / loss arising rom changes in demaographic assumptions 2198 (27.16)

Actuarial {gain} / loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 5.40 1,90

Actuarial {gain} / loss arising from changes in experience adjustments (35.14) 33.87
Defined benefit obligation at end of the year 194.36 157.06

Change in fair value of plan assets vepresenting reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereef are as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 3.70 347
Expected ceturn on plan asset 0.1v 0.31
Contributions by employer o ) 7.20 -
Benefits paid { (7.19) -
Remeasurement - aclvarial loss ((120) {0.02)
Fair value of plan assets at end o' the year 3.76 3.76

o & Asg

5

c‘g Bengalury
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The major categories of plan asset as a percentage of the fair value of total plan asset as follows:

31 Marvch 2023 31 March 2022

Investment with insurer 1(3(¥s 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation are shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate T11% 5.15%
Salary escalation rate 6.00% 6.00%
Adirition rate 3% 51% 6%
Retirement age 6l 60
Mortality Lables Indian Assured Indian Assured

Lives Mortality  Lives Mortality
(2002-14) Uit (2012-19) Uit
Table Table
Node:
1y The expeeted return on plan assel is determined considering several applicable Tactors mainly the composition of plan assets
held, assessed risk of assel management, historical results of return on plan assets and the Company policy for plan asset

2) The estimates of future salary increase. considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account intlation, seniority, promotion and
olher relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in employment market.

Sensitivity analysis
A quantifative sensitivity analysis For signilicant assumptions on defined benelit obligation as al 31 March 2023 is as shown below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Discount rate 189.28 199.70 152.56 161.80
Salary escalation rate 198.70 190.13 160.95 153.28
Atlrition rale 190.84 197.99 152.94 161.33

The follewing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in futare years

3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Year | 46.07 24.29
Year 2 3474 30,15
Year 3 32.07 23.87
Year 4 31.35 28,75
Year 5 18.05 16.41
Next 5 years 24.31 2048

The weighted averspe duration of defined benelit obligation at the end of 1he reporting period is 3 years (31 March 2022: 2 yeurs).
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(Al amounts i Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Fair value measurements

Management has assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, investments, loans, wrade
receivables, unbilled revenue, trade payables, borrowings, lease liabilities, other financial assets and liabilities approximate tiweir carrying amounts largely duc o
the short-term maturities of these instruments and these are measured at amortised cost,

The fair value of the financial assets and fabilities is included in the amount at which the instruments could be exchanpged in a current ransaction between
willing partics, other than in @ forced or liguidation safe,

Note 34: Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
« Market risk:

+ Credit risk: and

« Ligquidity rigk.

Risk management lramework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsitility for the establishmenmt and oversight of the Company’s risk management Framework. The
Company’s risk management policies are established to identily and analyse the risks taced by the Company. to sct appropriate risk linmstts and conlrols and Lo
moniter risks and adherence o limils. Risk management pelicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activitics. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims w maintain a disciptined and constructive control environment m
which all amnlovess nnderstand therr roles and ahlisatinne

The Company’s Board of Direclors oversees how management moniiers compliance with the Company™s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews
the adequacy of the visk management lramework in relation to the risks taced by the Company. The Board of Directors is assisted in its oversight role by intermal
auditors. ternal Audit function includes regular reviews of risk management controls and provedures, the results of which are reported W the Board of
Directors

(a) Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that the thir value of future cash flows of & financial instrument wdll Nuctuate because of changes in markel prices Markel nsk comprises
two types of risk: interest rate risk and Foreign currency risk,

Financial instruments allected by market risks include trade recervable, trade payable and borrowings.

{i) Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risks is the risk that the: fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Auctuate because ol changes in foreign curcency rates. The Company
does nol have significant foreign currency exposure and hence is hol exposed Lo any significant Foreign currency risks

i} Interest rate visk
Irierest rate risk is the risk that the Gair value or future cash Aows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuale becanse of changes in markel interest
rates. The Company does not have sipmilicant debt obligatien with loating interes( rates, hence is not exposed to any significant interest rate risks.

(b) Credit risk
Credil nisk is the risk thay counterparty wilk nol meet its contractual obligations under a lnancial insteument or customer contract, leading o a linancial {oss. The
Company is exposed 1o credit nsk (rom its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and Joans receivables, investments and other financial mstruments

Trade receivables

With respect to rade receivables/unbilled revenue, the Company has framed (he policies 1o review the receivables on periodic basis and 1o ke necossary
mitigations, wherever required. The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of prevision for ECL on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes provision for BCL based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Muanagement does not expect any significant loss Troim neb-performance by counterparties on credil granted during ihe fivancial year that has not been provided
{or,

The followmg able summarises the changes w (he loss allowance measured using ECL:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance 161 57 242 80
Amount Greversedprovided during the year {75.63) {8123y
Closing provision 85.94 161.57

Financial instraments
Credit risk from balances with the banks and [inancial instilutions are managed by the Company's teasury teain based on the Company's policy. Investment of
surplus fund 15 made only with approved counterpaties

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company periodically and the limits are set 1o minimise the concentration ol risks and therelore mitigate linancial
loss Lhrough counterparty’s poteatiat Failure 10 make payiments.
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(Al amounts in Rs lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet s financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to
maimtain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available to meet its labidites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incuring
unaceeplable losses or risking damage to Hwe Company’s teputation. The Company's objective is to mainkain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts and bank borrowings. The summary of the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities is as below

Maturity period 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Fimancial liahilities - Current

Borrowings Within | year - 235.00
Trade payabhes Willtin 1 year 1.22%.14 1.465 34
Lease liahilitics Within 1 year 152 33 50,18
Other financial Tiabilities Within | year 2,923 50 3.410.77
4,304.97 5,161.29
Financial liabilities - Non current
taease liabilities I - 3 years 33532 31,07
Other financial liabilities I -5 years 301.78 -
637,10 51,07

Note 35: Capital management

The key objective of the Company s capital management is 10 ensure thal it mamtains a stable capital strocture with the focus on total equity i uphold mvestor,
creditor and customer confidence and o ensure Tuture development of its business The Company is {ocused on keeping swong capiial base 1w ensure
independence and sustained growth m business.

The Companty is predominantly financed through equity and CCDYs fom holding companty  To maintam and adjust capital structore, the Company may adjust
the dividend payment 1o sharcholders, return capital 1o shareholders or 1ssue new shares. The existing surplus tunds along with the cash generated by the
Company. are sullicient w meet its current mor-current obligation and working capial requirement.

Note J6: Segment information

Ooperating segments are repatled in a manner consistent with the indermal reporting provided to the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM). As the Company
is primarily engaged in rendering manpower specialized stalling services. its business activines falls within a single business segment and accordingly there are
na additional disclosures to be provided under Ind AS 108 “Segment Reporting” The Company eperates primarily iv India and there is no other significant
geographical segment.
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{All amounis in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise staled)
Note 37: Related party disclosure

(i} List of related parties and relationship:

Description of relationship

Names of the related parties

a) Holding company
b) Subsidiary companies

) Fellow Sabsidiaries

d} Enterprises under significant influnence (where
transactions have taken place)

¢} Key management personnel and their relatives

(i) Transactions with related parties

Interest income from
Teambease HR Tech Private Limbed

Reverue from operations
Teamlease Services Limited
Teamlecase Regtech Private Limited
TeamLease Edtech Limited

Consultancy/services chavges paid
Teamlease Services Limited
Teambease HR Tech Private Linsited
Teami.ease Fdtech Limited
TeamLease Lducalion Foundation
Teami.case Reglech Private Limited
LMST S1alfing Privage Limited
Teamlease Skills University

Rent Paid
Teamlease Services Limiled
1.M.S| Statfing Private Limited
Teaml.ease FIRTech Private Limited
Teamlease Reglech Private Limited

Interest Paid on CCD
Teamlease Services Limited

Interest expense on loan received
TeamLease Services Limited
LM.S.F S1alTing Private Limited
Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited

Teaml_case Services Limited {TSL)
Keystane Business Solutions Private Limited ('K BSPLY

Teamlease HIVTech Privale Lmtired {HRTech™
1.M.5.1 Stalfing Privaie Limited {TMS1)
TeamLease FEducation Foundation (' TLEFY
Teamlease Edlech Limited ("TLEL"Y
TeamLease Reglech Private Limited ("TRPL)

Teaml.case Skills University ("TLS1"}

M. Alaka Chanda -Non Executive Director
Ms. Ramam Dathi -Non Executive DHreclor

Mr. Narayan Ramachandran - Independent Dircetor {appointed w.e.f. 25 July 2022)
Mrs. Rituparna Chakraborty - Non Executive Director (resigned w.e L 235 July 2022)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Expenses incurred by the Company on behall of others - Cross charged

Salary Cross charge
Keystone Business Solutions Privale Limited
L.MLS.L Staffing Private Limiled
Teamlease HRTech Private Limiled

.69 -
1.6% -
1,204.30 T41.00
- 2.04
175.20 45.33
1,379.50 788.37
39283 178.19
240.06 2294t
H.09 36.90
60.70 -

- 2.04

.51 -
0.03 (.58
709.22 447,12
113.76 -
P64 13.61
2.6% 6.60

- a1
128.0% 26.32
1.646.02 1,328.4%
1,646.02 1.328.4%
- 2.82

- 5.52

0.84 .22
0.84 38,56
37.37 217.69
23170 190,75
15.99 -
285,06 408.44




Reqnt Paid

Teamboase Services Limited 47.55 53.05
Teamlcase Edtech Limited 0.90 -
EM.S T Stafling Private Limited 16.49 319
64.94 56.84
Reimbursement of expenses
Teamlease Services Limited - 8.67
I.M.S.1 Staffing Private Limited 82.58 96.26
Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited - 0.32
§2.58 105.25
Wehsite development
TeamLease HR Tech Private Limited - 22.00
- 22.0H)
Loans and advances given to
TeamPease HRTech Private Limited 30906 -
309.06 -
Loans and advances vepaid by
TeamLease HR Tech Private Limired 271.00 -
2700 -
Loans and advances given by
Teaml.case Services Limited - 142000
EMBLST Stalbing Private Limied - 1,600.00
Keystone Business Solutions Private Linited - & TRE.00
- %,808.00
Loans and advances repaid to
TeamlLease Services Limited - 184036
LM S.0 Stafling Privale Limited - 2,050.00
Keystone Business Solwions Private Limited 235.00 6,876.00
135.00 10,766.36
Issne of CCD
Teamlease Services Limited 1,.32¢.00 1,461.00
1,320.00 1.460.00
Application money received towards allotment of CCID
Teamlease Services Limiled - 1.320.00
- 1.320.00

{iii} Ontstanding balances as at year ended

3t March 2023 31 March 2022

Loans
TeamLease HRTech Private Limited 3R.06 -
38.06 -
Trade / other receivables
‘Teamlease Services Limiled 0492 04 25114
Keyslone Business Solutions Private Limited - 6441
1L.M.S.1 StalTing Private Limited 95.70 {27.24
Teamlease Edtech Limited 0.90 kI il
Teambease FIRTech Privale Limited 777 -
770 479.49
Other financials assets
1.M.S.1 Stalling Private Limited 49.30 13.96
49.30 13.96
Investments in equity shares
Keystone Business Solutions Privale Limited §20.00 §20.00
#20.00 820000
Trade payables
TeamLease Scrvices Limited 215.31 28.55
LM.S.1 StafTing Privake Limiled - 6,13
Teaml.ease HR Tech Private Limbed 2199 14.95
Teamlease Ediech Limiged 1.30 1988
Teaml.ease Education Foundation 5.55 1.57
Keystone Business Solutions Private Limiled - .63

244.15 7L7S




Other Ginancial liability

Teaml gase Services Limited 97.32 33.07
97.32 33.07

Other current liability
I.M.5.1 Staffing Private Limited 487 -
Teamlease Edeech Limited 9.74 -
14.61 -

Borrowings - CCDs
TeamLease Scrvices Limited

19.724).00

18.400.00

19,720.00 18,400.00
Borrowings - loan
Keystone Business Solutions Private Lintited - 235.00
- 235.00
Borvowings - CCDs pending allotment
Teamlease Services Limited - 1,320.00
- 1,320.00
Guaranfee given on behalf of the Company to the Bank
Teaml.ease Services Limiled 1,.200.00 1,200.00
1,200.00 1.200.00

Note 38: Contingent liabilities

(a) Income tax matters in dispuie
(b) Prolessional tax mateer in dispute

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

49.60
24.30

93.08
24,30

Note 39: Commifments
Capital commitments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Listimated amounts of contracts remaining o be exeeuted on capital account and not provided tor - 950,00

Note d40: Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
{'MSMLED") Act, 2006

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as al the end of each accounting

year:

-Prin¢ipal amount dug te micro and small enterprises 11.21 81.57

-Interest due on above 147 -
12.68 §1.57

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMIEDY Act 2006 along with the smounts of - -

the payment made fo the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay i making payment (wltich have been paid bt 1.47 -

beyond the appoinied day during the year} bat without adding the interest specificd under the MSMIED Act 2006,

The amount of interest aecrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 1.47 -

The amount of furlher interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 1.47 -

nierest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as o deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMULUD Act 20006,

Naote 41: Scheme of Amalzamation

1. Board of directors of the Company and Evolve Technologies and Services Private Limijted (FTSPLY, in their respective meetings held on 16 November
2020 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (“Scheme™) of Evolve with the Company pursuant to Sections 2300 0 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("he
Act™) and ofher relevant provisions the Act. with appointed date being | April 2020, The Scheme was filed with the relevant jurisdictional office of National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on 12 December 2020,

During the year ended 31 March 2422, the Company and Evolve received NCLT approval for the Scheme with appointed date being 1 April 2020, The
Company has accounted for the said amalgamation in accordance with the approved scheme and the net impact resulting in deticit of Rs. 2,.894.67 lakhs on
such amalgamation was aceounted in opening retained camings as at 1 April 2020

2. The Board of dirgetors of the Company, LM.S.L Statfing Private Limited {L.M.5.1.) and Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited {Keystone), in their
respective meetings beld on Avgust 16, 2022 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation ol LM.S 1 and Keystone with ihe Company (“Scheme™) pursuant o
Sections 230 1o 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“1he Act™ and other relevant provisions of the Act, to the cxtent applicable, with appoinied date being |
April 2022 The Scheme has been filed with the relevant jurisdictional office of National Company Law Tribunal on September 06, 2022,




Teamlease Digital Private Limited

Nuotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{AILamounts in Bs iakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42 : Note on Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019
On recemmendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of holding company, the Board of Directors and Shareholders of holding company.
approved the ESAR 2019 plan al its meeting held on 9 June 2021, 3 September 2021 and 17 May 2022 respectively. The ESAR 2019 plan provides stock
options appreciation rights to eligible employees of the Company. The exercise peried is 5 years from the date of vesting. The Company will reimburse and
pay o holding Company cross charge of ESAR granted o the employces.

A. Details of ESAR 2019 plan

Particalars

Tranche-1

Tranche-11

Date of grant

9 June 2021
3 Seplember 2021

b July 2022

Number granted 20,100 12,350
Lxercise price (Rs) 3620 3.300
Vesting period 5 years 5 years

B. Movement in the stock options appreciation rights granted to employees - Tranche 1

Particulars

Number of Stock Appreciation Rights

Weighted average
Exercise price (Rs.)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Ouistanding ad beginning of the year

20,100

3.620

Granted

3,620

Forteited

20,100

Fxpired

Exercised

Ouistanding at end of the year

20,100

20,100

3620

xercisable at end of the year

3,620

C. Movement in the stock options appreciation rights granted to employees - Tranch 1}

Particulars

Tranche IT
Number of Stock Weighted
Appreciation average
Rights Exercise price

(Rs.)

31 March 2023

31 March 2023

Duistanding al beginning of the year

12,350}

3,300

Granted

Forfiied -

Fxpired N
Exereised - -
Omitstanding at end of the yvear 12,350

Exerciyable al end of the year

3300

D, Fair value of stock options appreciation rights granted
The Black-Schoies valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering follewing inputs:

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

juppreciation righis outstanding

Vaviables Tranche 11 Tranche |
Weighited average share price on date of grant 3,300 3,604
Exercise price (Rs) 3,300 3.620
Expected volaulity 38.43% 39.23%
Lifle ot rights granted in years 5 years 5 years
Risk free interest rate 731% £.79%
Expected dividend vield {%) - -
Fair value of oplion (2s.3{A) 1,385 1,495
Weighted average remaining contractual life 4.25 years 325 years
Weighted average exercise price ol stock aplions 3300 3.620

Stock options appreciation rights expense s Rs 5871 lakhs (31 March 2022 Rs. 2916 lukhs) for the year,
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Teamlease Digital Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note 44 : Other Statutory Information

(iy

(ii)
{it1)
(iv)

(v)

{vi)

(vii}

(viti)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

The Company do not have any charges or sutisfaction which is yet te be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Fhe Company have not traded or invesied in Crypto custency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities. including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{Ultimate Benehciaries) or

{b) provide any puarantee, sccurity or Lthe Tike to or on behalf ot the Ultimate Benefictaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Pacty) with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwisce) that the Company shall:

{a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall’ of (he Funding
Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Uliimate Beneficiarics.

The Company has not sutrendered or disclosed any income during the year in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961
{such as, search or survey ot any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company is maintaining its books of account in electronic mode and these books of account are aceessible in India at all times and
the back-up ol books of account has been kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis from the applicability date of the
Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014, i¢. 5 August, 2622 onwards.

The company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck ol under section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013,




Teamlease Digital Private Limited

MNotes te linancial stalements for the yeur ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounis in Rs. takhs. unless otherwise stated)

Note 45 : The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Secial Security, 2020 {"Code" relating to empleyee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits reccived Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazetle of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not
been notificd and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and
will record any related impact in the pericd the Code becomes ellective.

Note 461 Exceptional [tem

On account of Covid-19, the Company was unable to reconcile the service/project complelion with certain customers for services provided during April
202010 Sep 2021, Accordingly unbilled revenue of Rs 172,59 lacs related Lo such cases was writlen off in previous year.

Note 47 : Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of' Section 135 1o the Companies Act, 2013 in relation 10 Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company.

Note 48: Previous Year Figures

The figures of previous year were audited by a firm ol chariered accoumants oiher than S, Baiboi & Associales LLP, Previous year's ligures have

been reclassified, wherever necessary, 1o conform w the current year's clagsification,

For SR BATLIBO & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behall of 1he Board ol Direclors

ICAI Firm Registration Number: [01049W/E300004 Teamlease Digital Pll\hlll.. Limited l [ 'g(} Vd

Chartered Accountants

S
avin Agrawal Ramani Dxathi Alaka Chanda
Parmer Director Director
Membership Namber: 456107/ DIN: 08296675 DIN: 08856604

Place; Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: |7 May 2023 DPate: 17 May 2023



